
Members and guests are expected to show respect and common courtesy and refrain from using offensive language and behavior. The Board may 

recess or adjourn into Executive Session to consider legal or personnel issues, if necessary. 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Wednesday, August 28, 2019   2pm 

West Center Auditorium 

Directors:  Charles Sieck (President), Lynne Chalmers (Vice President), Sandra Thornton (Secretary), 
Carol Crothers (Treasurer), Donna Coon (Assistant Secretary), Tom Sadowski (Assistant Treasurer), 
Suzan Curtin, Christine Gallegos, Denise Nichols, Gail Vanderhoof, Don Weaver, Mike Zelenak, 
Kent Blumenthal (non-voting) 

Agenda Topic Member Exhibit Action Time 

1 Call to Order / Quorum Sieck 2:00 

2 Adopt Agenda Sieck 2:02 

3 Consent Calendar Sieck 2:05 
A. Minutes: Board of Directors June 26th & August 8th 

Meetings x x 
B. June & July Financial Statement x x 

6 President Report Sieck 2:10 

7 CEO Report Blumenthal 2:12 

8 Committee Reports 

A. Policy Governance Ad Hoc Chalmers 2:15 

B. Fiscal Affairs Crothers 2:25 

C. Board Affairs Curtain 2:35 

CPM Update for MR&R x x 

Multiple Property NMCF x x 

Square Dance Club Request x x 

CPM update for typographical errors x x 

D. Planning & Evaluation Coon 2:50 

E. Audit  Vanderhoof 2:55 

F. Investments Sadowski 3:00 

Investment Management Agreement x 
Investment Policy x x 

G. Bylaws Ad Hoc Curtain 3:10 

H. Survey / Facility Access Ad Hoc Thorton 3:15 

9 Board Project Status Reports 
A. Solar Gains Status Blumenthal 3:25 

B. Solar Services Agreement Amendment Sieck 3:30 

C. Estoppel Certificate Sieck x x 3:35 

D. Pickle Complex Status Update Blumenthal 3:40 

10 New Business Sieck 

Removal of vision statement from CPM x x 3:45 

11 GVR Foundation Report Counter 3:50 

A. Letter of support for MAP grant application  x x 

12 Member Comments (limit to 2 minutes each) 3:55 

13 Adjournment 4:00 





 

1 

 

  A regular meeting of the GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS held Wednesday, June 26, 2019 at West Center, the President being 

in the chair and the Secretary being present. 
 

Directors Present: Charles Sieck (President), Sandra Thornton (Secretary), Carol Crothers 
(Treasurer), Donna Coon (Assistant Secretary), Suzan Curtin, Christine Gallegos, Gail 
Vanderhoof, Don Weaver, Kent Blumenthal (non-voting) 

 
Directors Present Electronically: Lynne Chalmers (Vice President), Tom Sadowski (Assistant 

Treasurer), Denise Nichols, Mike Zelenak 
 
Staff: Cheryl Moose (CFO), Jen Morningstar (Director of Administrative Services), David Jund 

(Facilities Director), Kris Zubicki (Recreation Services Director), David Webster (Accounting 
Supervisor), Miles Waterbury (Communications Specialist), Karen Miars (Administrative 

Assistant), Payton Snider (System Administrator), Conal Ward (IT Technician) 
 
Visitors: 80 (includes additional staff) 

 
1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum 

President Sieck called the meeting to order at 2:08pm MST. 
Roll call by Secretary Thornton; Quorum established. 

 

2. Adopt Agenda   
MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Amend Agenda to remove Approval of Code of 

Conduct Revision under New Business.  
Passed: unanimous 

 

MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Adopt Agenda as amended. 
Passed: unanimous 

 

3. Consent Calendar 
A. Minutes: Board of Directors May 22 Meeting 

MOTION: Weaver / Seconded. Approve May 22, 2019 Meeting Minutes as 
presented. 
Passed: unanimous 

 

B. May Financial Statements 
MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Approve May 2019 Financial Statements as 

presented. 
Passed: unanimous 

 

4. President Report  
Good afternoon. The major subject to be addressed at this meeting is the contract for 

the construction of a pickleball complex. It marks the accumulation of years of hard 
work by a lot of people and it is coming down to the wire.  

 

As much as I had hoped it to be a joyous occasion, it also comes with a lot of frustration 
and disappointment.  

 



 

2 

 

The Board did not receive the final information until last Friday evening. It would be an 
understatement to say I was disappointed. We spend a couple hours on Monday 

afternoon in an executive session understanding the details of the contract and how we 
got to where we wound up. The final truth is that everyone was working the numbers up 

to Friday afternoon which is when it was firmed up. It would have been very beneficial 
had this happened a couple of weeks earlier. But it is what it is. 

 

Furthermore while all of this is going on, the Board was flooded with emails encouraging 
the approval of the pickleball complex. Most, if not all, directors read each email. While 

the members certainly have a right to do this, in this particular instance, it was at 
minimum an unnecessary distraction and certainly did not help their case. 

 

No one is getting everything they want in this contract. The pickleball players are only 
getting 8 courts. The costs has increased by 30% since January such that it puts the 
Board in a tight position to avoid violating the bylaws. However, we have two expert 

legal opinions that gives us grounds to proceed. 
 

The truth is that we are in a very bad environment to be building anything and it does 
not look to be getting any better in the future. Any changes or delays at this point will 
only cost more and we run a real risk of companies who have bid to stop responding.  

 

If we wait for the economy to tank, then construction costs may be less but then home 
sales will drop off significantly. The appetite to do any construction in that environment 

will be zero. 
 

Consequently, it is now or never.  
 

On the brighter side, there are a lot other things on which we are making great 

progress. Based on a legal opinion, we are eliminating the director confidentiality 
agreement which has discouraged some highly qualified members from running for the 
Board. The Fiscal Affairs Committee has found they can get the work done for 80% less 

that what the Board approved at our last meeting. And we will finally vote on accepting 
a grant from the Foundation to provide over $50,000 towards the construction of 

restrooms at the new pickleball complex which some of us have been working on this for 
over a year. 

 

5. CEO Report 
Good afternoon fellow GVR members, Board, and staff. The CEO report covers GVR-

related activities since our last board meeting on May 22.   
 

1. Pickleball Center – Phase I Construction Contract 

As you might imagine, all of the work that went into developing the contract for 
Board consideration today for construction of Phase I of the GVR Pickleball Center 
involved many hands and an extensive amount of effort. 

 

I especially want to thank the following individuals: members of the Pickleball 
Advisory Group; architect Kristen DiBone of WSM Architects; GVR Facilities Director 

David Jund and Project Manager Melanie Stephenson; Lovitt-Touche Insurance 
broker RJ Riley; GVR Accounting Department, CFO Cheryl Moose and Accounting 

Supervisor David Webster. 
  



 

3 

 

 

2. MedAvail/SpotRx Pharmaceutical Dispensary Kiosks Installed at Three 

Centers  
Installation of the GVR Concierge Kiosks were completed in three of our major 
Centers: CH, CR and EC. A SpotRx-sponsored Ribbon Cutting and luncheon was 

held at Canoa Hills and attended by about 200 members on Thursday, June 13.  
The Q&A led by MedAvail’s lead pharmacist was informative and the response of 

the audience was collectively positive and enthusiastic. 
 

3. Installation of Solar Panels throughout the GVR Campus 

I appreciate the patience of GVR members as we install rooftop and carport solar 
panels this summer at 11 sites throughout the GVR campus. The addition of solar 

panels at our Facilities Maintenance Building will save GVR an additional estimated 
$20,000 per year once activated. In exchange for this additional installation, Solar 
Gain, the company that is under contract to provide the solar installations, will 

soon request that the GVR Board agree to amend the contract to allow them to 
recoup .01 cents additional per kilowatt hour. Receipt of the proposed contract 

amendment is expected soon. A report from Solar Gain is also expected soon that 
will detail when the power will be turned on at various solar installations. 

 

4. Administrative Support provided to the GVR Foundation 
A few weeks ago I informed GVR Foundation Pres. Jim Counter that Administrative 

needs within the Executive Office continue to expand significantly. Because of the 
need for additional support staff within the Executive Office, I was withdrawing 
administrative support previously provided to the Foundation by Ms. Karen Miars at 

no cost under the terms of the GVR-GVR Foundation Resource Sharing Agreement, 
effective July 1, 2019. Jim was very gracious with the news and understands that 

my first obligation is to my employer, GVR. I thank Karen Miars for the exceptional 
support she has given to the GVR Foundation. 

 

5. Govern for Impact Annual Conference 
I had the good fortune to attend the “Govern for Impact Annual Conference” in 
Canada last week. Until this year, this conference was known as the International 

Policy Governance conference. I hope that information, knowledge and experiences 
that I brought home from the event can assist the Board as it contemplates our 

governing documents and considers adjusting the way we do business to improve 
efficiencies and effectiveness. 

 

6. 4th Annual ‘Paws in the Pool’ Event at West Center 
Paws in the Pool IV is scheduled for Friday, July 19 beginning at 7am at our West 

Center pool. The theme of this year’s event is “Super Hero.” Whether you have a 
pup or not, you don’t want to miss this event! It is both fun and hilarious! 

 

7. Independence Day, Thursday, July 4 
All of our Centers are open on July 4, Independence Day with regular operating 
hours. The Administrative offices and staffed Center customer service desks will be 

closed. 
 

Thank you. 
  



 

4 

 

 
6. Committee Reports 

A. Planning & Evaluation – Director Coon reported. Architect Kristen DiBone and 
President Paul Mickelberg of WSM Architects presented.  

 

Pickleball Complex Contract Approval 
MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Vote by secret ballot to approve Pickleball 

Complex Contract. 
Passed: 9 yes / 3 no (Nichols, Weaver, Zelenak) 

 

MOTION: Coon / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors accept the contract AIA, 
document A105-2017 with Division II Construction Company and Renner 

Corporation for construction of the GVR Pickleball Center at 2612 South 
Camino de la Canoa, Green Valley, Arizona, contract sum is $1,196,971.00 
with a completion date of January 15, 2020. 

Passed (Secret Ballot): 11 yes / 1 no   
 

B. Fiscal Affairs – Director Crothers reported. 
Approval of Financial Consultant Engagement 
MOTION: Crothers / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors approve the 

recommended candidate, RCM, direct the FAC to proceed with the 
engagement, authorize President Sieck and CEO Kent Blumenthal to sign 

the engagement letter and limit the total engagement to no more than 
$10,000.00. 
Passed: unanimous 

 

Providing FAC Requested Information 
MOTION: Crothers / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors authorize CEO 

Blumenthal to provide two pieces of information to be made available to the 
FAC as quickly as possible, no later than July 15, 2019: (1) the cost impact 

for two cards per household change that was recommended by the BAC and 
voted on and approved by the Board, and (2) the impact of online payment 
of dues by direct bank transfer. 

Passed: unanimous 
 

C. Audit – Director Vanderhoof reported. 
 

D. Board Affairs – Director Curtin reported. 

Minor CPM Changes to be Consistent with Bylaws 
MOTION: Curtin / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors approve 
changes/updates to the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) as attached.  

Passed: 10 yes / 2 no (Weaver, Zelenak) 
 

E. Investments Committee 
MOTION: Sadowski / Seconded. Whereas the Investments Committee 
previously requested (in April to the GVR CEO), that staff provide 

responses to questions regarding the Operational accounts, and that this 
information is required to determine whether or not we might improve on 

our processes in managing our operational cash. 
 

Now, therefore, let it be resolved, that the CEO provide this requested 

information no later than July 5th, 2019, so that the Investment 



 

5 

 

Committee may review this data prior to and during its upcoming 
Investment Committee meeting. 

Passed: 9 yes / 3 no (Coon, Weaver, Zelenak) 
 

F. Bylaws Ad Hoc – Director Curtin reported. 
 

G. Survey / Facility Access Ad Hoc – Director Thornton reported. 
 

7. Board Project Status Reports 
A. Solar Gain Status – Report given during CEO report. 

  

8. New Business 
GVR Foundation Pickleball Grant Agreement Approval 

MOTION: Vanderhoof / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors accept the GVR 
Foundation Grant Agreement dated June 21, 2019.  

Passed: unanimous 
 

Approval to Release the 2018 IRS Form 990 on Website 

MOTION: Crothers / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors approve to post the 
2018 Form 990 to the GVR website.  
Passed: unanimous 

 

Ad Hoc Committee on Tracking Room Utilization 

MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors approve an Ad Hoc 
Committee to the Board be created to:  
1. Recommend changes to improve visibility of conference room availability. 

2. Recommend metrics for monitoring conference room utilization. 
This committee will report these recommendations at the August 28th 

meeting of the Board. President Sieck will chair this Ad Hoc Committee. 
 

MOTION TO AMEND: Weaver / Seconded. By the August 28 Board meeting, 

GVR staff to provide analysis of current Board policies with any 
recommendations or suggestions to the Board on what may be improved. 
Motion to Amend Passed: unanimous 

 

Amended Motion Passed: 11 yes / 1 no (Nichols) 
 

Amended Motion: In place of an Ad Hoc Committee, President Sieck to work 
with CEO Blumenthal and GVR staff to provide analysis of room reservation 

procedures with recommendations to the Board by the August 28 Board 
Meeting. 

 

Elimination of Confidentiality Agreement 
MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors approve the requirement 

that directors sign a confidentiality agreement be eliminated and existing 
copies of the confidentiality agreement purged from the GVR records. 
Passed: 11 yes / 1 no (Zelenak) 

 

9. GVR Foundation Report – GVRF Director John Damitio reported on the transition of 
GVRF accounting records and responsibilities from GVR to GVRF accountant; a $2,000 

grant received from Greater Green Valley Community Foundation to help fund the fall 
campaign; consideration to apply for a grant to fund a Portable Stage postponed to a 



 

6 

 

later date; GVRF continues to work with GVR to finalize a pickleball grant request; and 
June and July GVRF Board Meetings cancelled. 

 

10. Member Comments: 4    
 

11. Adjournment - Meeting adjourned at 4:05pm MST. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               

Sandra Thornton Date  Jen Morningstar   Date 
Secretary  Director of Administrative Services 

 
 



1 

CPM Changes/Updates – BOD Meeting, June 26, 2019 

Addition of CRCF per the Bylaws. 

Section II. 
B. Guest Policy (updated 8/29/2017) 1. Guest privileges are intended for temporary visitors
of a Regular Member, Assigned Member, Tenant, CRCF or Life Care User of GVR and who
live outside a twenty (20) mile radius of established GVR Boundaries.

Switch 4 & 5 in SECTION VI; Subsection 3; B.4 & 5: 
4.. e Board will use the following small board protocol during Board meetings:

5.. oard meetings shall be held at least quarterly, at a place and time
determined by the Board.

4. Board meetings shall be held at least quarterly, at a place and time
determined by the Board.

5. T e Board will use the following small board protocol during Board meetings:

SECTION VI, Subsection 1, G.2. – combine c & d. 

c) Initiate the formal performance appraisal process, typically 2-3 months prior
to the date of the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors. This time period

allows

d) Completion of the appraisal process, format review and action by the Board

and meeting with the CEO.

c) Initiate the formal performance appraisal process, typically 2-3 months prior

to the date of the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors. This time period
allows completion of the appraisal process, format review and action by the

Board and meeting with the CEO.





 

1 

 

  A special meeting of the GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS held Thursday, August 8, 2019 at Las Campanas, the President being 

in the chair and the Secretary being present. 
 

Directors Present: Sandra Thornton (Secretary), Donna Coon (Assistant Secretary), Suzan 

Curtin, Christine Gallegos, Don Weaver, Kent Blumenthal (non-voting) 
 

Directors Present Electronically: Charles Sieck (President), Lynne Chalmers (Vice 
President), Carol Crothers (Treasurer), Tom Sadowski (Assistant Treasurer), Denise Nichols, 
Gail Vanderhoof, Mike Zelenak 
 

Staff: Cheryl Moose (CFO), Jen Morningstar (Director of Administrative Services), David Jund 
(Facilities Director), Kris Zubicki (Recreation Services Director), David Webster (Accounting 

Supervisor), Karen Miars (Administrative Assistant), Jason King (IT Technician), Payton Snider 
(System Administrator), Conal Ward (IT Technician) 
 

Visitors: 135 (includes additional staff) 
 

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum 
President Sieck called the meeting to order at 1:36pm MST. 
Roll call by Secretary Thornton; Quorum established. 

 

2. Adopt Agenda   

MOTION: Weaver / Seconded. Adopt Agenda as presented. 
Passed: unanimous 

  

3. New Business 
A. BAJA Sporting Club Pickleball Proposal 

GVR CEO Kent Blumenthal requested the Historical Timeline of the GVR-BAJA 

Proposed Lease Agreement dated August 8, 2019 be included in the minutes.  
 

MOTION: Sieck / Seconded. Vote by secret ballot to accept the GVR-BAJA 
Lease Agreement. 
Passed: 7 yes / 5 no (Coon, Gallegos, Nichols, Weaver, Zelenak) 

 

Call the question: Sieck / Seconded.  

Passed: 8 yes / 4 no (Coon, Gallegos, Weaver, Zelenak) 
 

MOTION: Nichols / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors approve the proposed 

Lease Agreement between Green Valley Recreation, Inc. (GVR) and the BAJA 
Sporting Club non-profit organization. Upon approval, this Lease Agreement 
will be submitted for legal review with final vote approval to be voted on at 

the August 28 GVR Board of Directors meeting.  
Failed (Secret Ballot): 5 yes / 7 no 

 
~~Denise Nichols left the meeting.  



2 

B. Proposed Amendment to Solar Services Agreement

MOTION: Chalmers / Seconded. GVR Board of Directors approve the
Amendment to the Solar Services Agreement, specifically the increase of
1/10 of cent per kilowatt hour only, with the condition the net difference

does not have a negative impact to GVR.
Passed: unanimous

4. Adjournment

MOTION: Sadowski / Seconded. Adjourn meeting at 3:46pm MST.
Passed: unanimous



 

1 
 

 
 

Historical Timeline  
GVR-BAJA Proposed Lease Agreement 

8/8/19 

 
1. In spring 2019, GVR member Mark Haskoe inquired of CEO Blumenthal whether or not the 

BAJA sporting group could pay GVR to build pickleball courts and allow use of the courts 

by BAJA members who are not GVR members.  CEO Blumenthal suggested that BAJA 

submit a proposal to the GVR Board for its consideration. 

 

2. On June 26, 2019 the GVR Board approved a contract with Division II contractors to begin 

Phase I construction of the Pickleball Center, limited to infrastructure and eight courts. 

Section 3.3 of the contract allows funds contributed by independent third-parties to be 

applied to construction of additional courts, up to 24, if donations are received by 

September 1, 2019. 

 

3. On July 9, 2019 BAJA Pres. Jim Brewer and BAJA member Mark Haskoe (both GVR 

members) met with CEO Blumenthal to discuss the possibility of BAJA entering into an 

arrangement with GVR whereby BAJA would pay cash prior to the September 1, 2019 to 

build four (4) additional pickleball courts ($85,000) at the Pickleball Center in exchange for 

access to GVR pickleball courts-only for a limited number of BAJA Members during a 

negotiated term of Agreement.  CEO Blumenthal suggested that a Lease Agreement may 

be the best approach for that type of business arrangement, and requested that BAJA 

initially suggest terms of agreement.  CEO Blumenthal explained that GVR legal counsel 

would have to ascertain whether or not GVR could enter into that type of business 

relationship with a third-party. 

 

4. July 16, 2019 – Groundbreaking Ceremony at GVR Pickleball Center site.  

 

5. July 18, 2019 – BAJA Pres. Jim Brewer presented initial proposed Lease Agreement Terms 

(DRAFT #1) to CEO Blumenthal. 

 

6. On July 22, 2019, six days after the Pickleball Center groundbreaking ceremony, CEO 

Blumenthal informed GVR Pres. Sieck and the GVR Board of BAJA’s interest in a lease 

agreement with GVR, whereby BAJA would pay cash prior to the September 1, 2019 to 

build four (4) additional pickleball courts ($85,000) at the Pickleball Center in exchange for 

the limited access to GVR pickleball courts-only for some BAJA Members.  CEO Blumenthal 

requested that President Sieck ask the attorney retained by GVR for policy-related issues 

to advise whether or not GVR’s governing documents allow GVR to entertain BAJA’s 

proposal and proceed to develop Terms of Agreement with BAJA. 



 

2 
 

 

7. On July 25, 2019, Pres. Sieck exchanged several email correspondence: 

 

a. Pres. Sieck confirmed that he had a phone conference with attorney Jim 

Jutry about the BAJA Sporting Club proposal, and that “there is no legal restriction 

in proceeding with an agreement with the BAJA Sporting Club based on what we 

now know,” with the caveat, “That could change once the details are better 

known.” 

 

b. CEO Blumenthal responded that “Now that it has been clarified that there is no 

legal impediment to an arrangement whereby BAJA could provide funding for GVR 

pickleball courts in exchange for certain consideration,” Blumenthal would be the 

primary contact with the BAJA Sporting Club and proceed with BAJA officials to 

craft a proposed term sheet.  Once accomplished, CEO Blumenthal would submit 

the proposed terms with a separate memo identifying ‘pros and cons’ to President 

Sieck and the GVR Board for consideration.  Blumenthal stated, “If following that 

there seems to be a majority of GVR Directors interested in pursuing the GVR-BAJA 

PB courts-funding arrangement, then [Blumenthal] will submit the term sheet to 

legal counsel to craft into a formal GVR-BAJA Agreement for vote of the Board on a 

‘hurry-up’ schedule” in order to meet the September 1 independent funding 

deadline to construct additional pickleball courts. 

 

c. President Sieck asked to have documented “what GVR is giving up for the 

additional 4 courts by Friday, August 2nd,” which would “give us enough time to 

create the appropriate legal documents, get them reviewed through GVR's and 

BAJA's legal counsel, get it approved by the BAJA Board, and approved by our 

Board at the meeting on the 28th.  That leaves 2 working days for the money to be 

deposited in the escrow account.” 

 

d. CEO Blumenthal agreed to “make it a priority to have proposed terms of 

agreement & "pros/cons" memo to [President Sieck] and the Board by COB, Friday, 

August 2.” 

  

8. Discussion of Proposed Lease Agreement Terms (DRAFTs #1-#5) between CEO Blumenthal 

& BAJA Pres. Jim Brewer July 18 – July 31, 2019. 

 

9. On August 1, 2019: 

 

a. BAJA President Jim Brewer notified CEO Blumenthal that the BAJA Board of 

Directors unanimously approved the proposed Lease Agreement terms (DRAFT #5) 

and asked that the proposal be presented to the GVR Board. 

 



 

3 
 

b. CEO Blumenthal forwarded to GVR Pickleball Club President Jeff Harrell the BAJA 

Board-approved proposed Lease Agreement terms (DRAFT #5) to determine if the 

GVR Pickleball Club Board of Directors had any issues with the proposal. 

 

10. On August 1, 2019 at 7pm, MST GVR Pickleball Club President Jeff Harrell notified CEO 

Blumenthal that “The GVRPC Board enthusiastically votes unanimously to support the 

lease agreement with BAJA.” 

 

11. On August 2, 2019 at 11:30am, MST CEO Blumenthal sent to Pres. Sieck and the GVR 

Board the proposed Lease Agreement Terms with a separate ‘Pros & Cons’ document.  In 

the email communication to the GVR Board, CEO Blumenthal wrote: 

 

The proposed terms of agreement have not yet been reviewed by legal counsel.  I did not 

want to waste time and money if the GVR Board had no interest in entertaining a lease 

agreement with BAJA. If the GVR Board supports entering into the Lease Agreement, the 

proposed terms will be turned over to an attorney to craft into a formal contract post 

haste. 

 

As CEO, I support entering into a lease agreement with BAJA, as does my entire 

Management Team. The GVR Pickleball Club Board of Directors enthusiastically voted 

unanimously to endorse a lease agreement with BAJA last evening. 

 

12. On Saturday, August 3, 2019 GVR Pres. Sieck gave written notice to the GVR Board of a 

Special Board Meeting to be held on Thursday, August 8, 2019 to discuss the proposed 

GVR-BAJA Lease Agreement terms. 





• 
G\IR 

GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
GREEN VALL.EV RECREATION. INC. 

The accompanying pages are the Financial Reports for June 30, 2019. The four statements are: 

Statement of Financial Position. 

This is also known as a Balance Sheet or the Statement of Net Assets. 

Statement of Activities 

Also known as an Income and Expense statement. This report shows the types of Income, 

the categories of expense and the unrealized Investment Market changes for the year to 

date. The bottom line in this report is the net for all the reserve accounts maintained by GVR. 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

This report displays the financial activity of the four reserves that make up the Net Assets of 

Green Valley Recreation. These reserves are: 

Unrestricted - These net assets include the Fixed Assets (land, buildings and 

equipment), undesignated current assets less the current liabilities and deferreed 

revenue items. 

Emergency - Designated by the Board of Directors, this reserve is held to 

provide liquidity when needed for operational emergencies. 

Maint - Repair - Replacement - designated by the Board of Directors, this 

reserve is the accumulation of assets in support of the Reserve Study which is 

mandated for Common Interest Realty Associations like Green Valley 

Recreation. Annual amounts are budgeted and transferred into this reserve for 

the purposes of the name of this reserve. 

Initiatives - This reserve is designated by the Board of Directors to help with the 

funding for new programs that evolve from member interests and demands. 

Innovation in programming enables GVR to respond to member expectations. 

Investment Portfolios 

This report displays the market values of investments at the beginning of the year, the dollar 

amounts of changes that occurred from January 1st to the date of the financial statements. 

The unrealized gain or loss on market value changes is shown on a separate line to result in 

the market value of investments as of the reporting month end. The investments related to 

each of the Reserves (Unrestricted and Designated) are included in separate columns. 



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 
Statement of Financial Position 

As of Date: June 30, 2019 and Dec 31, 2018 

GREEN VALLEY RECREATION. INC. 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash/Cash Equivalents 
Accounts Receivable 
Prepaid Expenses 
Other Investments Charles Schwab/SSH 
Investments 

Total Current Assets 

Fixed Assets 

Contributed Fixed Assets 
Purchased fixed Assets 

Sub-Total 

Less - Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Fixed Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
Deferred Dues & Fees 
Deferred Programs 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS 

Temporarily Restricted: 
Board Designated: 

Emergency 
Maint - Repair - Replacement 
Initiatives 

Sub-Total 

Unrestricted Net Assets 
Net change Year-to-Date 

Unrestricted Net Assets 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

June 30, 2019 

Total 

1,692,950 
258,012 
101,750 

10,286,348 
3,020,731 

15,359,791 

17,593,785 
19,975,496 
37,569,281 

(21,124,087) 

16,445,193 

31,804,985 

108,063 
3,280,736 

58,561 

3,447,361 

28,357,624 

811,727 
6,583,363 
2,327,570 
9,722,660 

17,600,833 
1,034,131 

18,634,964 

28,357,624 

Dec 31, 2018 

Total 

1,099,888 
97,020 

207,872 

10,995,715 

12,400,495 

17,593,785 
19,354,268 
36,948,053 

(20,315,542) 

16,632,511 

29,033,006 

342,959 
1,106,509 

260,046 

1,709,514 

27,323,492 

804,646 
5,881,453 
1,996,087 
8,682,185 

18,641,307 

18,641,307 

27,323,492 































 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
June 26, 2019 

 
APPROVED 

Board Affairs Committee 
June 10, 2019 

 
MAINTENANCE REPAIR & REPLACEMENT RESERVE FUND 

 

Overview: GVR Board of Directors updated the Maintenance Repair and 

Replacement Reserve Policy at their May 22, 2019 meeting. To be consistent with 

the new policy, the CPM should be updated to reflect the change in funding. 

 

Recommendation: The Board Affairs Committee unanimously recommends the 

Board of Directors delete the following from the CPM and renumber accordingly: 

 

CORPORATE POLICY MANUAL 

SECTION V – FISCAL / ACCOUNTING 

SUBSECTION 2. RESERVE POLICY 

E. Maintenance, Repair & Replacement Reserve Fund 

1. Purpose 

This fund shall be used only to maintain, repair or replace existing 

equipment and facilities as listed in the Component List of the Annual 

Reserve Study.  

If a Component is or Components are an integral part of a capital asset 

not part of the Component List, only the Fully Funded Balance (as 

defined by the Reserve Study) to maintain, repair or replace such 

Component or Components may be used to repair or replace a non-

component list asset. for example: A pool failure requires a new pool, the 

Fully Funded Balance as of the fiscal year of the pool failure to resurface 

the pool deck, re-plaster the pool, etc. may be withdrawn from this 

reserve and used to cover some of the cost of the new pool.  

 



Example: 

A GVR pool needs to be replaced in fiscal year 2019. For pool resurfacing 

of said pool only, its Fully Funded Balance of $8,742 for fiscal year 2019 

not $11,593 in 2021 can be used to cover some of the new pool cost. 

 

 

 

Fully Funded Balance / Cash Flow Method

Inflation Rate 3.00%

Interest Rate 0.00% Period → 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Component List

Current

Cost

Future

Cost

Useful

Life

Remaining

Useful

Life 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Pool - Resurface 10,000 11,593 10 5 10,000 2,060 4,244 6,556 9,004 11,593 1,194 3,116 3,800 5,219 6,720

Useful Life = 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10

Remaining Useful Life = -5 -4 -3 -2 -1 0 -9 -8 -7 -6 -5

Useful Life - Remaining Useful Life = Effective Age  5 6 7 8 9 10 1 2 3 4 5

Effective Age ÷ Useful Life = 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

  Current Cost = $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 11,593$     11,593$  11,593$  11,593$  11,593$  

Current Cost * (Effective Age ÷ Useful Life) = 6,000$    7,000$    8,000$    9,000$    10,000$  1,159$       2,319$    3,478$    4,637$    5,796$    

Fully Funded Balance 6,180$    7,426$    8,742$    10,130$  11,593$  1,194$       2,460$    3,800$    5,219$    6,720$    



 
APPROVED 

BOARD AFFAIRS 
July 8, 2019 

 
 

EXHIBIT 3 
 

NEW MEMBER CAPITAL FEE 
 
 
SUBSECTION 3. ANNUAL DUES, ANNUAL DUES INSTALLMENT PAYMENT PLAN, INITIAL FEES, 
FEES FOR SERVICES (updated 9/25/2018) 
D. Initial Fees  
1. The Initial Fee may be adjusted annually by the Board based on the Department of Labor CPI 

(Consumer Price Index), “all items, Western Urban Region,” rounded to the nearest dollar amount.  

2. The initial fee is due at the time of the closing of escrow on a deed-restricted membership property or 
at the time an owner elects to deed-restrict property for membership.  

3. An owner paying an Initial Fee shall be exempt from paying the New Member Capital Fee on that 
property.  

 
E. New Member Capital Fee – adopted 12/17/2015  
Upon transfer of title to a GVR membership property, the new owner thereof shall pay a New Member 
Capital Fee unless such owner was a GVR membership property owner at the time of the transfer or 
within twelve months prior thereto. Revenue from the New Member Capital Fees may be used as will 
most effectively further the general purpose of the Corporation to provide for current and future needs. 
 
SUGGESTED: 
E. New Member Capital Fee – adopted 12/17/2015  
1. Upon transfer of title to a GVR membership property, the new owner thereof shall pay a New Member 
Capital Fee unless such owner was a GVR membership property owner at the time of the transfer or 
within twelve months prior thereto.  
2. When purchasing 1 or more additional GVR membership properties, the new owner shall pay the New 
Member Capital Fee for each such additional property, except for transfer of title, as described in #1 of 
this section E.  
3. Revenue from the New Member Capital Fees may be used as will most effectively further the general 
purpose of the Corporation to provide for current and future needs. 





APPROVED 
BOARD AFFAIRS 

July 8, 2019 
 
 

EXHIBIT 
 

GREEN VALLEY SQUARES REQUEST FOR GUEST FEE REDUCTION 
 

 
Overview 
On July 8, 2019 Randy Pecsek made a presentation to the Board Affairs Committee on 
behalf of the GV Squares Club. 
The club requested the non-member guest fee be reduced to $2.00 for the next year. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 
The Board Affairs committee recommends the Board of Directors approve the fee reduction of 
$2 for guests of the GV Squares Club dances for the next year. 





EXHIBIT 

Approved 
BOARD AFFAIRS 

June 10, 2019 

Typos in Corporate Policy Manual 

    Organizations I have researched or otherwise have personal knowledge do 
not revise and distribute a manual page containing an inconsequential error.  
That cost is not justified.    
    That said, I propose this CPM addition that does call for review of all errors, 
but does not require changing a page due to simple error.  Keeping in mind 
some seemingly small errors can change or confuse the content meaning, or 
threaten lives, i.e., “Lets eat Grandma”, versus, “Let’s eat, Grandma” 

Dale Sprinkle 

SECTION X – MISCELLANEOUS 

SUBSECTION 3.  MISTAKE OR TYPOGRAPHICAL ERROR IN PRINTED MATERIAL IN THE 
CORPORATE POLICY MANUAL. 

A. When a GVR member or employee discovers or is made aware of an apparent mistake or
typographical error in the Corporate Policy Manual, that person is directed to forward that
information to the Chair, Board  Affairs Committee.

B. Upon receipt of that information, the Chair, Board Affairs Committee, or a Board Affairs
Committee member designated by the Chair for such purpose, shall examine the reported
error and:

1. If the error in any way changes or confuses the intended meaning of the section,
it shall be referred to the Board Affairs Committee.  The Committee shall take
appropriate corrective action.

2. If the error does not alter or confuse the intended meaning of the section, the
reviewing person shall forward the information to the Director of Administrative
Services, who may cause the item to be placed in a tickler file for corrective
action to be taken the next time the page containing the error is otherwise revised.





At the August Investment Committee meeting, the committee considered 5 proposals for the 

investment of GVR Operational Cash account.  This recommendation was based upon a simpler 

structure which reduces the chance for operational errors and reduces the level of GVR financial staff 

workload required. 

Additionally, we are able to get a lower price and a higher level of service which includes waiving 

account minimum requirements, and access to needed funds quicker, and increased returns on our 

investments.  The current anticipated return is 2.74%. 

The Investment Committee has approved and therefore recommends the GVR Board of Directors 

approve the transfer of Operational Account assets from Edward Jones to JP Morgan Chase.  Since GVR 

already has its existing Operational bank accounts with JP Morgan Chase, they have offered to waive 

their account minimums and provide that the Branch Manager of its Scottsdale office be the point of 

contact for GVR financial staff. 

This change also requires the updating of GVR’s Investment Policy statement to address Operational 

cash, which includes an addendum which includes the investment strategy, asset allocation, 

performance objective, and investment constraints.  This updated IPS has been approved unanimously 

by both the Investment and Fiscal Affairs committees. 

Therefore, I make the following motion, that GVR Board’s approve the transfer of assets from Edward 

Jones to JP Morgan Chase, and that the Board adopt the new Investment Policy Statement and 

Addendum (copies attached). 

INVESTMENTS COMMITTEE



Page 1 of 6 
File: IC - IC Policy Update.docx 

CORPORATE POLICY MANUAL 
APPENDIX 1 – BOARD POLICIES 
SUBSECTION 3. GVR INVESTMENT POLICY 
  
1. Introduction  
 

In making investment decisions, the Board of Directors (the “Board”), Investments Committee, GVR’s Chief 
Executive officer (the “CEO”) and Chief Financial officer (the “CFO”) and GVR’s financial advisor(s), if any, 
shall act in good faith, with the care an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under 
similar circumstances and in a manner they reasonably believe to be in the best interests of Green Valley 
Recreation, Inc. (the “GVR) and manage the assets of GVR in accordance with the Arizona Prudent Investor 
Act (AZ Rev Stat § 1410901 et. seq.) and the Arizona Management of Institutional Funds Act (AZ Rev Stat § 
10-11801 et. seq.)   
 

2. Purpose and Scope  
 

The purpose of this Investment Policy Statement (the “IPS”) is to provide a framework for ensuring that GVR 
investments are managed consistently with GVR’s short-term and long-term financial objectives. At the 
same time, this IPS is intended to provide for sufficient investment flexibility to adjust to operational and 
market changes.  This IPS applies to all investments of GVR’s excess operating cash and Reserve Funds and 
supersedes GVR’s Corporate Policy Manual concerning investments.   

  
3. Definitions  
 

Defined words used in this IPS are capitalized and written in Bold typeface.  
 
See Appendix A for definitions of defined words.  

  
4. Management of Investments.  
 

GVR’s Board has fiduciary responsibility for GVR’s investments.  The Board, Investments Committee, GVR’s 
CEO and CFO and financial advisor(s), if any, are bound by (1) this IPS unless changed or amended by Board 
resolution and (2) all federal and state laws and regulations.    

 
5. Investment Objectives, Risk Tolerance, Investment Strategy, Asset Allocation, Liquidity, and Rebalancing.   
 

The primary investment principle is to maintain the safety of GVR’s assets.   
 
The secondary investment principle is to have invested operating cash and Reserve Funds available when 
needed by GVR’s operations without incurring an unwarranted loss of value or costs. The maturity horizon 
for each Fund shall be determined by each Fund’s purpose, use, and needs.   
 
Specifically, the target Asset Allocations and anticipated allocation ranges for each Fund are below:  
 

Fund A (Initiatives Reserve Fund) Target Range 

Equities 10% 5-20% 

Fixed Income 80% 80-100% 

Cash 10% 0-20% 

 
 
 



Page 2 of 6 
File: IC - IC Policy Update.docx 

 
 

Fund B (Maintenance 
Repair/Replace Reserve Fund) 

 
Target 

 
Range 

Equities 25% 15-35% 

Fixed Income   70% 65-75% 

Cash 5% 0-10% 

 
 

Fund C (Emergency Reserve Fund)   Target Range 

Equities 70% 60-80% 

Fixed Income   30% 15-35% 

Cash 0% 0-15% 

 
A specific Risk Tolerance to match the purpose and use of Operating Cash Investments and the Reserve 
Funds shall be determined.  Within the constraints of the primary and secondary investment principles and 
Risk Tolerance, a written Investment Strategy Addendum for operating cash investments and the Reserve 
Funds shall be designed, constructed and implemented to achieve the following.   

 
a. Match the purpose and use of operating cash investments and each Reserve Fund. 

 
b. Provide a relatively predictable and growing stream of annual income and Capital Appreciation after 
inflation, taxes, if any, fees and costs while minimizing the impact of market Volatility.   
 

Portfolios shall be Rebalanced as appropriate but at least annually.   
 
Liquidity of all investments shall be trade-date plus two (2) business days (“T+2”).  

  
6. Permitted Investments:  

 
a. Fixed income securities issued by the U.S. Treasury Department, 
b. Fixed income securities issued by a direct Agency of the U.S. Federal Government, 
c. Certificates of Deposit issued by a bank that is insured by the U.S. Federal Deposit Corporation, 
d. Certificates of Deposit issued by a credit union that is insured by the U.S. National Credit Union 

Administration, 
e. Fixed income securities and fixed income financial instruments that are rated Investment Grade (at the 

time of purchase) by one or more of the major credit rating agencies and are denominated in U.S. 
Dollar terms, 

f. Common stock of a corporation that is either domiciled, headquartered, or incorporated in the U.S. and 
which trades in U.S. Dollar terms, 

g. Preferred stock of a corporation that is either domiciled, headquartered, or incorporated in the U.S. 
and which trades in U.S. Dollar terms, 

h. American Depository Receipts, 
i. Global Depository Receipts, 
j. Mutual funds and Exchange Traded Funds that satisfy the following seven criteria: 

1. Under normal market conditions, provide daily access, 
2. Under normal market conditions, settle within two or fewer business days, 
3. Are not designated by an independent third-party investment research firm as providing 

leveraged exposure, 
4. Are not designated by an independent third-party investment research firm as providing inverse 

exposure, 



Page 3 of 6 
File: IC - IC Policy Update.docx 

5. Are the cheapest share class available to GVR and for which GVR is eligible, and  
6. Trade in U.S. Dollar terms. 

 
Overnight investment in money market funds at GVR’s bank and broker/dealer, if any, are permitted.   

 
7. Prohibited Investments 
 

a. Any security or financial instrument that is not listed as permitted in Section 6. Above 
 
8. Review and Monitoring  
  

a. GVR’s Board of Directors is responsible for GVR’s Investment policies, activities, and performance.  
 
b. The Chief Executive officer (CEO) shall have oversight of and the Chief Financial officer (CFO) is 
responsible for: a) Monitoring the activities of GVR’s financial advisor(s) b) Day-to-day coordination with 
Advisor regarding investment activity and decisions.   
 
c. The Investments Committee’s responsibilities are listed below.  

 
1. Select, hire and terminate professional outside investment advisor(s) with notice to the CEO  
 
2. Revise GVR’s Investment Policy Statement subject to Board approval  
 
3. Monitor, measure, and report on investment advisor’s or advisors’ performance(s)  
 

a) For Equities the following benchmarks shall be considered:  
 
. Russell 1000 (large-cap equities)  
 
ii. Russell 2000 (small cap equities)   
 
iii. MSCI EAFE (international equities  
 

b) For Fixed Income the following benchmark shall be considered:  
i. Bloomberg Barclays US Intermediate Govt/Credit Index   

 
4. Ensure GVR management implements and complies with GVR’s Investment Policy Statement   
 
5. Meet at least once each calendar quarter to perform its assigned duties and report to the Board.  

 
9. The responsibilities of the Client  

  
a. The client will authorize specific employees to serve as liaisons between the Client and Advisor.   
 
b. Client’s authorized staff is responsible to ensure the smooth transition of the Clients investment portfolio 
to Advisor.   
 
c. Client’s authorized staff will oversee that the Advisor’s reporting requirements are met.   
 
d. Client’s authorized staff will ensure that communications to Advisor from Client’s Board of Directors or 
Investments Committee are presented to Advisor in a timely manner.  



Page 4 of 6 
File: IC - IC Policy Update.docx 

 
e. Client’s authorized staff will facilitate the Advisor’s face-to-face and videoconference presentations to 
Client’s Board of Directors or Investments Committee.  
 
f. Any proposed changes to this investment policy statement will be discussed with the Advisor promptly.  
 
g. The client will inform the Advisor, as soon as possible of anticipated additions to or withdrawals from the 
Portfolio.  

 
10. The responsibilities of the Advisor  

  
a. Any deviation from these guidelines will be discussed in advance with the Client unless market conditions 
require immediate action.  
 
The Advisor will, within these guidelines, have full discretion to buy, sell, invest and reinvest in assets on 
behalf of the Client.   
 
b. Advisor has a fiduciary responsibility to make investment decisions based upon what is best for the Client 
and within Investment Policy 
 
Guidelines approved by the Client, the Advisor will have discretion to buy, sell, invest, and reinvest in 
investment assets on behalf of the Client, with notification to the Client of such transactions.  
 
c. The Investment Advisor will make in-person presentations about the Client’s investment portfolio to the 
Client’s Board of Directors and/or Investments Committee in Green Valley, AZ at Advisor’s expense at least 
twice a year, unless otherwise mutually agreed in writing between Advisor and Client.  
 
d. The Advisor will participate in audio and/or videoconference meetings with the Client’s Investments 
Committee on a quarterly basis each year, when not meeting in person, unless otherwise mutually agreed in 
writing between Advisor and Client.  

 
11. Acknowledgments  
 

We, the Board of Directors, recognize the importance of adhering to this Investment Policy Statement and 
agree to fulfill its objectives to the best of our ability.  

 
  



Page 5 of 6 
File: IC - IC Policy Update.docx 

APPENDIX A – Definition of Terms Investment Policy Statement Green Valley Recreation, Inc.  
  
Investopedia.com is the primary source of definitions. Some definitions have been paraphrased or they are a 
composite from several sources.  
 
American Depository Receipt (ADR) is a negotiable certificate issued by a U.S. bank representing a specific 
number of shares (or one share) in a foreign stock that is traded on a U.S. exchange. ADRs are denominated in 
U.S. Dollars, with the underlying security held by a U.S. financial institution overseas. This is an excellent way to 
buy an investment in a foreign-based company while realizing any dividend and capital gains in U.S. Dollars. 
However, ADRs do NOT eliminate currency, economic and country risks attributable to the foreign-based 
company. There are other ADR risks too. Consult your financial advisor(s).  
  
Asset Allocation, buy and sell guidelines and Risk Tolerance. Investment strategies can differ greatly from a 
rapid growth strategy to a Capital Appreciation strategy. The most important part of an investment strategy is 
that it aligns with the investor’s goal and it is followed closely by the investor and his financial advisor.  
  
Asset Class means a group of securities that exhibit similar characteristics. The three (3) main asset classes are 
stocks, fixed income securities (bills, notes, bonds & other debt) and cash and cash equivalents. Some 
investment professional would include real estate and commodities and, possibly, other types of investments. 
Whatever the asset lineup, each one is expected to reflect different risk and return characteristics and will 
perform differently.   
  
Asset Allocation is an Investment Strategy aimed to balance risk and reward by apportioning a portfolio’s assets 
according to an investor’s goals, Risk Tolerance, and investment time horizon. There is no simple formula that 
can find the right asset allocation for every investor. However, the consensus among most financial 
professionals is asset allocation is one of the most important decisions an investor can make. In other words, an 
investor’s selection of individual securities is secondary to the way investments are allocated among the various 
securities.  
  
Capital Appreciation is a rise of an asset price based on a rise in market price.  
  
Credit Rating is a grade composed of a letter or letters and numbers given to a particular security by a 
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (a credit agency) that ranks investment according to its 
ability to meet its obligations.  
  
Diversification is a process of allocating capital in a way that reduces exposure to any one particular asset or 
risk.  
  
Fund or Fund’s and Funds or Funds’ means operating cash investments and each Reserve Fund.  
  
Investment Grade is a Credit Rating that indicates the issuer of a debt security has relatively low probably of 
default. In the case of stocks, investment grade indicates the financial soundness of the issuer. The investment 
industry has well-established credit rating standards for investment grade.  
  
Investment Strategy is an investor’s plan of attack to guide its investment decisions based on its goals, Risk 
Tolerance and future needs for invested money. The components of most investment strategies include   
 
Investment Strategy Addendum is the written Investment Strategy required in section 5 of this Investment 
Policy Statement. 
 



Page 6 of 6 
File: IC - IC Policy Update.docx 

Leverage is the use of various financial instruments or borrowed capital such as margin to increase a potential 
return of an investment.  
  
Liquidity means how quickly and easily an investment can be converted into cash.  
  
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO) is a term used by the U.S. Federal government in 
several regulatory areas to define a credit rating company like Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s, Fitch and others.  
  
Rebalancing is the process of realigning the weightings of a portfolio’s assets to match its Asset Allocation 
model’s weightings. Over time, the prices of investments rise and fall unevenly thus changing the weighting of a 
portfolio’s assets. For example: If an Asset Allocation model is 40% stocks, 50% fixed income and 10% cash and 
the current portfolio assets are distributed 45% stocks, 35% fixed income and 20% cash, rebalancing buys and 
sells investments to align the current portfolio’s asset weightings with the Asset Allocation model. If a different 
Asset Allocation model is applied to a portfolio, rebalancing adjusts the portfolio’s assets to the new Asset 
Allocation model’s weightings.  
  
Reserve Fund and Reserve Funds mean a reserve fund as defined in GVR’s Corporate Policy Manual, Section V- 
Fiscal/Accounting, Subsection 2 – Reserve Policy – adopted 11/18/2014, subparagraph B – Maintenance of GVR 
Financial Reserve System Updated 8/25/15.  
  
Risk Tolerance is an investor’s willingness to risk a potential loss for a potential gain. For example: How 
comfortable is an investor taking a potential 10% loss for a potential gain of 20%? The investor’s risk tolerance is 
tested at various levels of loss v. gain to assess the investor’s overall tolerance for risk and reward.  
  
Volatility is the dispersion of a security’s price from its mean price over time. A high deviation from a security’s 
mean indicates high volatility. Allow deviation indicates low volatility. Commonly, higher the volatility means 
higher the risk. 



Page 1 of 3 
File: IC - IPS Addendum.docx 

GVR INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY ADDENDUM – OPERATING CASH INVESMENTS 

 
 
 
Purpose and Use 

 
Operating Cash Investments pays GVR’s operating expenses. Excess operating cash, not needed 
immediately, shall be invested in accordance with the Risk Tolerance, Asset Allocation, Performance 
Objective, and Investment Constraints specified below. If one or more of the Investment Constraints is 
violated, the Violation Cure Procedure will be followed.  
 
 

Risk Tolerance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Asset Allocation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
ig

h
Lo

w

Low High

Ex
p

e
ct

e
d

 f
u

tu
re

 r
e

tu
rn

Expected future risk

Target Permitted Range

Equities 0% 0% to 0%

Fixed Income (other than Cash Equivalents) 59% 39% to 69%

Cash Equivalents 41% 31% to 61%



Page 2 of 3 
File: IC - IPS Addendum.docx 

Performance Objective 
 
The desired return is 50 Basis Points (0.50%) above six-month U.S. Treasury Bills measured over rolling 
time windows of six months in length. 

  
 
Investment Constraints  
 

 At any and all times, the Portfolio is required to: 

o Have an Average Effective Maturity of less than 2.50 years, 

o Have an Average Effective Credit Quality that is “A+” or better, 

o Consist exclusively of daily-access mutual funds that provide settlement within one business 

day (or less), and 

o Consist of mutual funds that collectively provide indirect diversification across more than 900 

individual securities (reflecting the securities contained inside the mutual funds). 

 The Portfolio is prohibited from directly holding any security that: 

o Is not classified as a daily-access mutual fund, 

o Requires more than one business day for settlement, 

o Is classified by any one of the Designated Investment Research Firms as: 

 Something other than a domestic fixed income mutual fund, 

 Providing inverse exposure, 

 Providing leveraged exposure, 

 Holding less than 150 individual securities (held inside of the mutual fund), or 

 Having an Average Effective Duration that is less than or equal to zero. 

o Generates an annual K-1 tax statement, 

 If the Portfolio strays outside of the Policy Range, then within three business days, the Portfolio is to 

be rebalanced back to Policy Weights. 

 
 
Violation Cure Procedure  
 

 If the Portfolio is in violation of one or more of the Investment Constraints described above for a 

period of time greater than fifteen consecutive business days, then: 

o The Chairman of the GVR Investment Committee is to be immediately notified, 

o The Portfolio is to be brought back into compliance within fifteen business days, and 

o Once the Portfolio is back in compliance, the Chairman of the GVR Investment Committee is to 

be immediately notified. 



Page 3 of 3 
File: IC - IPS Addendum.docx 

 
 
Definitions  
 
Portfolio means the entire Operating Cash Investments held at J.P. Morgan taken as a whole and in its totality.  
 
Average Effective Maturity and Average Effective Credit Quality shall be based only on data, information, and 
calculations provided by the Designated Investment Research Firms.  
 
Designated Investment Research Firms are Schwab, Morningstar, J.P. Morgan Private Bank, J.P. Morgan Asset 
Management, Portfolio Insights (JP Morgan Chase & Co), and the specific mutual fund companies that 
comprise the Portfolio.  
 
Policy Weights is defined as:  

 

 41% JP Morgan Prime Money Market Fund, VPMXX (a money market fund)  

 41% JP Morgan Managed Income Fund L, JMGIX (a bond mutual fund)  

 18% JP Morgan Floating Rate Income Fund, JPHSX (a bond mutual fund)  

 
Policy Range is defined as:  

 

 31% to 61% JP Morgan Prime Money Market Fund, VPMXX (a money market fund)  

 31% to 51% JP Morgan Managed Income Fund L, JMGIX (a bond mutual fund)  

 8% to 24% JP Morgan Floating Rate Income Fund, JPHSX (a bond mutual fund) 



 
 

 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AUGUST 26, 2019 

 

Solar Services Estoppel 
 

 

Overview 
Green Valley Renewable Energy LLC is requesting that GVR sign an estoppel 

certificate because it is selling all of its outstanding equity interest to SR Green 
Valley Holdings, LLC. As part of that transaction, SR Green Valley Holdings, LLC 

is requesting an estoppel certificate. An estoppel certificate is commonly used in 
instances where there is an existing contractual relationship between parties and 
a third party comes to own interest that is related to/impacted by the existing 

agreement. This new third party wants to have it acknowledged that everything 
is good with the existing agreement and affiliated parties. 

 
The execution of the estoppel certificate is provided for in Section 22(i) of the Solar 
Services Agreement with Green Valley Renewable Energy LLC. 

 
The estoppel was reviewed by the attorney who reviewed the First Amendment of the 

Solar Services agreement and GVR received the following comments: 
 

The estoppel certificate that sent to you is very standard and fine for you to execute. 

You should understand that you are acknowledging all of the following: 
a. There are no defaults or potential defaults under the original agreement or 

amendment with Green Valley Renewable Energy LLC (“SSA”); 
b. There is no existing basis for GVR to cancel or terminate the SSA; 
c. There are no defenses or offsets in favor of GVR against enforcement of any of 

the terms, covenants and conditions of the SSA; 
d. Green Valley Renewable Energy LLC has observed and performed all of the 

terms, covenants and conditions to be observed and performed; 
e. You/GVR have observed and performed all terms, covenants and conditions to 

be observed and performed; and 
f. To your/GVR’s actual knowledge, there are no actions, whether voluntary or 

otherwise, pending against GVR under the bankruptcy laws of the United States 

or any state thereof. 

 
Recommendation 
The Board of Directors authorize President Sieck to sign the proposed estoppel certificate 

(attached). 



OFFTAKER ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE 

 

This Offtaker Estoppel Certificate (this “Certificate”) is delivered as of August__, 2019 

(the “Effective Date”) by Green Valley Recreation Inc. (“Offtaker”). 

WHEREAS, Offtaker is a party to that certain Solar Services Agreement, dated as of June 

28, 2018, by and between Offtaker and Green Valley Renewable Energy LLC (“Seller”), as 

amended by that certain First Amendment, dated as of August __, 2019 (as amended, the “SSA”).  

Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings given to such terms in the SSA; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the SSA, Seller agreed to construct certain solar panel systems 

(“Systems”) on premises owned by Offtaker, and Offtaker agrees to purchase the energy 

produced by the solar panel systems and licenses the premises on which the systems are to be 

constructed to Seller (the “Premises”);  

WHEREAS, SR Green Valley Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 

(“Buyer”) in connection with providing financing to Seller for the System, is purchasing all of 

the outstanding equity interests in Seller; 

WHEREAS, Section 22(i) of the SSA provides that either Party to the SSA, without 

charge, at any time within five (5) business days after receipt of a written request by the other 

party, shall deliver a written estoppel certificate certifying to certain matters specified therein and 

Seller hereby, in accordance with the SSA, so requests. 

Offtaker hereby certifies, as of the Effective Date, to Buyer, and its successors and 

assigns, who in material reliance on the certifications contained herein is assuming the Seller’s 

interest and obligations in and to the SSA, as follows: 

1. Exhibit A sets forth a true and complete copy of all documents constituting the 

SSA, including the SSA and any amendments or modifications of the same. The SSA is 

unmodified and in full force and effect, as set forth in Exhibit B. The SSA represents the entire 

agreement between Offtaker and Seller. 

2. As of the Effective Date: 

a. there are no defaults existing under the SSA on the part of Seller or 

Offtaker, and, to Offtaker’s knowledge, no events have occurred that, with the passage of 

time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default by Seller or Offtaker under 

the SSA; 

b. there is no existing basis for Offtaker to cancel or terminate the SSA; 

c. there are no defenses or offsets in favor of Offtaker against enforcement 

of any of the terms, covenants and conditions of the SSA; 

d. Seller has observed and performed all of the terms, covenants and 

conditions on Seller’s part to be observed and performed; and 

e. Offtaker has observed and performed all of the terms, covenants and 

conditions on Offtaker’s part to be observed and performed. 

3. To Offtaker’s actual knowledge, there are no actions, whether voluntary or 

otherwise, pending against Offtaker under the bankruptcy laws of the United States or any state 



thereof. 

4. Offtaker has read this Certificate and acknowledges and understands the 

certifications and representations made herein. The undersigned signatory represents and 

warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute this Certificate on behalf of Offtaker. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]





 

EXHIBIT  

Overview:  

 

Article I. Section E. of the Corporate Policy Manual states; 

 

Vision of the Corporation (September 27, 2016); 

“To be the preeminent destination of choice for active adults and retirees.” 

 

It was not well received by the membership and rated poorly on the 2018 

Membership Survey. 

 

In 2018, a subcommittee of the Survey Ad Hoc Committee was created to propose 

an alternative vision statement.  An alternative was never proposed to the Board. 

 

The Corporate Policy Manual still contains the vision statement that was created in 

September 27, 2016. 

 

 

Recommendation: Remove Article I Section E from CPM. 





 

P.O. Box 586  | Green Valley, AZ 85622 | 520.625.3440  | 844.838.0164 

 
 
 
 
August 28, 2019 
 
President Regina Ford, 
Board of Directors 
Country Fair White Elephant, Inc. 
601 North La Canada 
Green Valley, Arizona 85614 
 
 
Dear President Ford, 
 
The Green Valley Recreation, Inc. (GVR) Board of Directors offers unqualified support to the 
GVR Foundation in seeking a grant from Country Fair White Elephant, Inc. to aid the GVR 
Foundation's Member Assistance Program (MAP).  
 
For over 24 years, the MAP has served 870 Green Valley Recreation, Inc. members who reside 
in Green Valley by providing financial aid to those living on limited financial resources. 
Thanks to a generous $5,000 grant from Country White Elephant, Inc. in 2018, MAP was able 
to financially assist 45 individuals in need in 2019.  
 
Please know that GVR Board of Directors is extremely appreciative and thankful for the 
continued support for MAP provided to the GVR Foundation by the Country White Elephant, 
Inc.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Charles F. Sieck 
President, Green Valley Recreation, Inc. Board of Directors 
 


	1 08282019 BOD Agenda.pdf
	3A1 06262019 BOD Minutes - DRAFT.pdf
	06262019 BOD Minutes - DRAFT.pdf
	BA Proposals 06262019.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	06262019 Meeting Book.pdf
	06262019 Meeting Book.pdf
	5 - EXHIBIT BA CPM Changes 062019.pdf





	3A2 08082019 BOD Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	08082019 BOD Minutes - DRAFT.pdf
	Meeting Book.pdf
	Ltr - Solar Gain J Mosji to GVR - 1st Amendment to Agreement 8-2-19.pdf
	SSA_FIRST AMENDMENT-GVR-Solaris - FINAL rev. 8-2-19.pdf
	Lease Agreement - Pickleball Center GVR-BAJA - PROPOSAL 8-2-19.pdf
	Pros and Cons - GVR-BAJA Lease Agreement 8-2-19.pdf

	HISTORICAL TIMELINE -  Proposed GVR-BAJA Lease Agreement 8-8-19.pdf

	3B1 June Financial Statements.pdf
	3B2 July Financial Statements.pdf
	8C1 BAC MRR CPM Update.pdf
	EXHIBIT - MR&R Update 06262019.pdf

	8C2 BAC - NMCF.pdf
	8C3 BAC - Guest Fee Reduction.pdf
	8C4 BAC - CPM Typos.pdf
	8F IC Policy Statement.pdf
	8F1 IC - Motion.pdf
	8F2 IC - IC Policy Update.pdf
	8F3 IC - IPS Addendum.pdf

	9C Estoppel.pdf
	Exhibit - Solar Services Estoppel Certificate 08262019.pdf
	Form of PPA estoppel--GVR.pdf

	10 Removal of vision statement from CPM.pdf
	11 GVRF Letter of Support WE-MAP Grant.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



